
 

 
9 April 2012 Agenda 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday, 9 April 2012, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Lonnie Davis, Jr. 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 
 

In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance and 
operations of the City. 
 



 

 
9 April 2012 Agenda 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a)  26 March Short Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 
b)  26 March Work Session 

 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the Council 
must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The 
sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and identify the Agenda Item 
about which you wish to speak on the sign up sheet.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3  
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a) Reserved for future use. [Notebook Tab 2] 
 
 b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-26, Adopting Vance County’s Language Access 

Plan.  (CAF 12-48) [See Notebook Tab 3]   
 

 Resolution 12-26 
 
 c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-25, Adopting Vance County’s Fair Housing 

Plan.  (CAF 12-47) [See Notebook Tab 4]   
 

 Resolution 12-25 
 
 d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-34, Approval of 2012 BJA JAG Grant 

Application.  (CAF 12-45) [See Notebook Tab 5]   
 

 Resolution 12-34 
 

 e) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-31, Authorizing the Adoption of the Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works Asset Management Plan.  (CAF 12-43)[See Notebook Tab 6]   

 
 Resolution 12-31 

 
 f) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-27, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #37, 

Amending General Fund 10 and Powell Bill Fund 11; 2) Ordinance 12-28, FY 11-12 Budget 
Amendment #38, Amending  Water Fund 30 and CIP Water Fund 43; 3) Ordinance 12-29, 
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #39, Amending the CIP Regional Water Fund 46.  (CAF 12-
54) [See Notebook Tab 7]   

 
 Ordinance 12-27 
 Ordinance 12-28 
 Ordinance 12-29 



 

 
9 April 2012 Agenda 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3 
 

X.  REPORTS 
a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager  
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Calendar Notes and Schedule Update [See Notebook Tab 8] 
ii. Various Departmental Reports  

 Henderson Fire Department 
 E-911 
 Davis Chapel Proclamation  

 
XI.     ADJOURNMENT 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern 
to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three 
minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public 
hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, 
be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be 
directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public 
comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 26 March 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 10 

City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Regular Short Meeting 

26 March 2012 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Garry D. Daeke, and George M. Daye.  
 
ABSENT 
 
Brenda G. Peace-Jenkins and Lonnie Davis, Jr., 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, Zoning 
Administrator Sherry Moss, and Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom Spain. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 26 March 2011 Short Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:01 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 
 
Mayor O’Geary noted two of the Council Members were unable to be present due to health 
reasons and is hopeful they will be able to join the meeting next month. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Rainey led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  City Clerk McCrackin 
stated there was one addition to New Business:  Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-33, 
Grant Application for Funding Through the NC Governor’s Highway Safety Program.  She also 
said there was a technical change to the Budget Workshop Session in that there would be no 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 26 March 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 10 

Short Regular meeting on May 21 as noted on the schedule but there would be a budget work 
session.  City Attorney Zollicoffer stated there will be three items discussed during Closed 
Session relating to G.S. §143-318.11(a)(3) Attorney-Client Privilege Matters, one being a 
lawsuit entitled City of Henderson vs. Henderson Motels and Others and another relating to 
Halim vs. Donovan, and two (2) issues under G.S. §143-318.11(a)(6), Personnel Matters.  No 
other requests were made to adjust the Agenda.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of 
Council.  Council Member Rainey moved to accept the Agenda with the stated changes. Motion 
seconded by Council Member Daye and unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Daeke moved the approval of the following minutes as presented:  12 March 2012 Regular 
Meeting.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye and unanimously approved. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
An Ordinance Providing for the Zoning of Solar Farms, Wind Turbines and Other Tall 
Utilities.  (Reference: CAF 12-09; Ordinance 12-06) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Zoning Administrator Sherry Moss to come forward and explain the 
Planning Board’s recommendation. 
 
Ms. Moss stated this issue originally came before the Planning Board in January and was tabled 
twice in an effort to combine solar farms with wind turbines and other tall utilities. Currently, 
nothing exists in the zoning code for these issues and since alternative energy is becoming more 
common, the Planning Board felt it was time to set guidelines.  The guidelines include lot size, 
set back restrictions and decibel (noise) limitations. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked how the decibels were determined and since Oxford recently 
approved a solar farm, if anyone was aware of their restrictions.  Ms. Moss responded the 
number was taken from research found on the American Wind Industry web site and as far as she 
was aware, there has been no input from Oxford.  Council Member Coffey inquired if the 
ordinance covered both the ETJ and the City.  City Attorney Zollicoffer stated yes.    
 
With no discussion, Mayor O’Geary opened the Public Hearing by asking if anyone was present 
who wished to speak in favor of this amendment.  No one came forward, so Mayor O’Geary then 
asked if anyone was present who wished to speak in opposition to the amendment.   
 
 Benny Finch, 150 Crestwood, Henderson.  Mr. Finch stated he did not wish to speak 
against the ordinance but said he works in the solar field and would like to offer suggestions.  
Mr. Finch felt solar farms should be separated from the other two items as solar does not produce 
noise nor lights and said the setback could be a problem for businesses.  He suggested contacting 
the North Carolina Solar Center for sample ordinances and helpful information. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 26 March 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 10 

 
Council Member Rainey, as a member of the Planning Board, asked Mr. Finch what type of 
security is suggested for solar farms.  Mr. Finch responded usually a 10’ fence surrounds the 
farm. 
 
 Stuart Litvin, EDC Director.  Mr. Litvin said the EDC is currently working with 
several RFP’s (Request for Proposal) and said the solar farms seem to be on large tracts of non-
urban/agricultural property. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked what the revenue benefit would be to the City.  Mr. Litvin said 
usually the energy generated is sold back to the local utility and anticipated there would be only 
limited numbers of jobs.  Council Member Rainey asked in what area the requests have been 
made.  Mr. Litvin said one was in the ETJ and one in the county. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked how existing businesses would be affected.  City Attorney 
Zollicoffer said perhaps the ordinance should be defined further. 
 
City Manager Griffin inquired as to why the 1,000’ setback saying he had traveled through an 
area with many turbines that were not that far off the road and were close to homes.  Attorney 
Zollicoffer said the thought was to decrease the noise created by the wind turbines. 
 
Mr. Finch added tax credits are offered and should also be considered.  
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary closed the Public Hearing and asked for Council’s 
pleasure. 
 
Council Member Daeke made a motion to table this issue, asking the Planning Board to review 
the ordinance and clarify the questions raised  Motion seconded by Council Member Kearney 
and Approved by the following vote:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Daeke and Daye.  
NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Davis and Peace-Jenkins. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak on 
agenda matters.   



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 26 March 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 10 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Authorizing the Amendment of Rural Center Contract #2010-266-40101-112 and 2008-349-
40101-112, Allowing Funds Originally Approved for the UV Replacement Project to be 
Utilized for Further Improvements to the Sanitary Sewer System for Reduction of 
Infiltration and Inflow.  (Reference: CAF 12-10; Resolution 12-24) 
 
City Manager Griffin said this is good news and asked Assistant City Manager Frazier to advised 
Council.  Assistant Manager Frazier said the UV project is practically 100% complete and staff 
is asking for approval to use the approximately $110,000 remaining for infiltration and inflow 
projects.  Mr. Frazier has talked with the Rural Center and they are agreeable.  With Council’s 
approval and final approval from the Rural Center, these funds would be used to upgrade the 
Sandy Creek area. 
 
There was no discussion and Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Resolution 12-24, Authorizing the Amendment of 
Rural Center Contract #2010-266-40101-112 and 2008-349-40101-112, Allowing Funds 
Originally Approved for the UV Replacement Project to be Utilized for Further Improvements to 
the Sanitary Sewer System for Reduction of Infiltration and Inflow. Motion seconded by Council 
Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Daeke, 
Daye and Kearney.  NO: None:  ABSTAIN:  None: ABSENT: Davis and Peace-Jenkins.  (See 
Resolution Book 2, p 297) 
 
Authorizing the Waiving of Certain Sanitation Fees Related to the Collection of Yard 
Debris/Trash in Excess of 200 Pounds During the Henderson-Vance Spring Litter Clean-
Up Effort.   (Reference: CAF 12-50; Resolution 12-29) 
 
City Manager Griffin said one of the Retreat items was to partner with the community and this is 
one way to do so.  It shows good will in an effort for a cleaner community and no budget impact 
is anticipated. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked how the waiver would be determined since it does not apply to 
construction sites, building materials, stumps, etc.  Assistant City Manager Frazier said normally 
you can tell by looking at the site. 
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Resolution 12-29, Authorizing the Waiving of 
Certain Sanitation Fees Related to the Collection of Yard Debris/Trash in Excess of 200 Pounds 
During the Henderson-Vance Spring Litter Clean-Up Effort.   Motion seconded by Council 
Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Daeke, Daye, 
Kearney and Coffey.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None: ABSENT: Davis and Peace-Jenkins.  (See 
Resolution Book 2, p 307) 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 26 March 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 10 

 
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #35, Providing for the Creation of a Rate Stabilization Fund 
for the Water Plant Expansion Project.  (Reference:  CAF 12-42; Ordinance 12-07) 
 
City Manager Griffin said it was a happy day when the first installment of $951,139 was 
received from Granville County for the Water Sales Agreement.  He thanked Council Member 
Inscoe for his part in the negotiation in helping to offset future costs of the plant expansion with 
the agreement and said this Ordinance establishes a new capital reserve fund which will accrue 
interest which will provide funds for future work such as moving the booster station and meter at 
Granville Triangle North Business Park.  
 
Council Member Kearney asked for clarification that the funds would be set aside to offset costs 
for expansion.  Mr. Griffin stated yes, saying these funds will go a long way toward offsetting 
the debt service cost of the necessary future expansion.  
 
Council Member Inscoe added this agreement was also solidified for economic development 
within the Park with the County receiving 25% of the revenue generated by Park businesses. 
 
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked Council for its pleasure. 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Ordinance 12-07, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment 
#35, Providing for the Creation of a Rate Stabilization Fund for the Water Plan Expansion 
Project.    Seconded by Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  
Rainey, Daeke, Davis, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe.  NO: None:  ABSTAIN:  None: ABSENT:  
Davis and Peace-Jenkins.  (See Ordinance Book 8, p 365) 
 
Ratifying and Approving the Mayor’s Signature on the North Carolina Rural Economic 
Development Center Contract 2011-050-40101-102, Amendment No. 1 and Amendment No. 
2 re: KLRWS Master Plant Update and Sewer System Hydraulic Capacity Study 
Downstream of Sandy Creek P/S Discharge Point.  (Reference:  CAF 12-51; Resolution 12-
30) 
 
City Manager Griffin said this is a housekeeping matter.  This purely moves the date for 
completing the grant, and the Rural Economic Development Center is in agreement.  This 
Resolution ratifies the Mayor’s signature extending the final report date to 30 June 2012. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 12-30, Ratifying and Approving the 
Mayor’s Signature on the North Carolina Rural Economic Development Center Contract 2011-
050-40101-102, Amendment No. 1 and Amendment No. 2 re: KLRWS Master Plan Update and 
Sewer System Hydraulic Capacity Study Downstream of Sandy Creek P/S Discharge Point.  
Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 26 March 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 6 of 10 

Daeke, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe and Rainey.  NO:  None:  ABSTAIN:  None: ABSENT:  
Davis and Peace-Jenkins.  (See Resolution Book 2, p 309) 
 
Ratifying and Approving the Mayor’s Signature on the North Carolina Rural Economic 
Development Center Contract 2008-349-40101-112, Amendment No. 5.  (Reference:  CAF 
12-49; Resolution 12-28) 
 
City Manager Griffin said this is also good news and asked Assistant City Manager Frazier to 
come to the podium.  Mr. Frazier said this also related to the UV project closeout and an 
amendment is necessary for the submission of the final report.  The Mayor executed the 
amendment and this Resolution ratifies his signature which extended the completion deadline to 
6 July 2012.  
 
There was no discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Resolution 12-28, Ratifying and Approving the 
Mayor’s Signature on the North Carolina Rural Economic Development Center Contract 2008-
349-40101-112, Amendment No. 5.  Motion seconded by Council Member Kearney and 
APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Daeke, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, and Rainey.  
NO: None:  ABSTAIN:  None: ABSENT: Davis and Peace-Jenkins. (See Resolution Book 2, p 
305) 
 
Authorizing the Development of an Inter-Local Agreement with the NC Cooperative 
Extension of Vance County Providing for the Use of the Operations Center Parking Lot for 
the Purpose of Operating the Vance County Farmers Market on Saturdays from Mid April 
2012 through November 2012.  (Reference:  CAF 12-52; Resolution 12-32) 
 
City Manager Griffin said the City received a request from the NC Agriculture Extension to use 
the Operations Center parking lot from mid-April 2012 through November 2012 for the Vance 
County Farmers Market.  A new location has been chosen for the Market but it will not be 
available for use until 2013.  If approved, this agreement will provide for the typical inter-local 
requirements such as insurance and Mr. Griffin said staff has no objection to this request. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if both existing farmers markets will move to this location and 
Council Member Kearney asked if there would be problems with a market on any day other than 
Saturday. 
 
Mayor O’Geary invited Ms. Mary Helen Jones, representing the NC Cooperative Extension of 
Vance County, to respond.  Ms. Jones said the current Wednesday market will remain at the 
YMCA.  She also said they are hopeful that having the market in the same area as the new site 
will draw more people to the Saturday market.  
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 26 March 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 7 of 10 

Council Member Daeke moved the approval of Resolution 12-32, Authorizing the Development 
of an Inter-Local Agreement with the NC Cooperative Extension of Vance County Providing for 
the Use of the Operations Center Parking Lot for the Purpose of Operating the Vance County 
Farmers Market on Saturdays from Mid April 2012 through November 2012.  Motion seconded 
by Council Member Daye and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Daye, Kearney, 
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, and Daeke.  NO:  None:  ABSTAIN:  None: ABSENT:  Davis and 
Peace-Jenkins.  (See Resolution Book 2, p 313) 
 
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #36, Providing for the Creation of a Unified Regional 
Reserve Fund.  (Reference:  CAF 12-44, Ordinance 12-24) 
 
City Manager Griffin said this is another housekeeping matter.  Currently there are three separate 
capital reserve funds for the Regional Water Plant.  It is the recommendation of staff to 
consolidate these three funds into one unified fund (78 Capital Reserve Regional Fund) which 
will still provide for appropriate and necessary monetary controls. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the accounts would be separately identified for audit purposes.  
Mr. Griffin responded yes and mentioned there are other accounts that may be brought before 
Council in the future for the same reason. 
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Ordinance 12-24, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment 
#36, Providing for the Creation of a Unified Regional Reserve Fund.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Inscoe and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Daye, Kearney, Coffey, 
Inscoe, Rainey, and Daeke.  NO: None:  ABSTAIN:  None: ABSENT: Davis and Peace-Jenkins 
(See Ordinance Book 8, p 399) 
 
Grant Application for Funding Through the NC Governor’s Highway Safety Program.  
(Reference:  CAF 12-53;  Resolution 12-33) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Police Chief Keith Sidwell to address Council.  Chief Sidwell stated 
this grant recently became available and it will provide a reimbursement to the City of 75% of 
the cost requested.  He stated the funds for the 25% match will come from the Federal Asset 
Forfeiture Funds so no dollars are required from the City.  The total Grant amount requested will 
be $25,312 which will purchase  one  (1) traffic equipment trailer, one (1) portable light tower 
and generator, one (1) portable generator, forty (40) high visibility traffic cones, three traffic 
Checkpoint Signs with portable stands and twenty (20) OSHA/DOT certified traffic vests.  
 
There was no discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure 
 
Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Resolution 12-33, Grant Application for 
Funding Through the NC Governor’s Highway Safety Program.  Motion seconded by Council 
Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 26 March 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 8 of 10 

Rainey, Daeke, and Daye.  NO: None:  ABSTAIN:  None: ABSENT: Davis and Peace-Jenkins. 
(See Resolution Book 2, p 315) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
The City Clerk read the Consent Agenda, summarized as follows: 
 
 a) FY 12 Budget Amendment #33, Authorizing Funds to Various Street Repair 

Projects.  This item allows for replacing and/or stabilizing storm drain pipes on Birch 
Circle, Hillside Avenue and Cameron Drive and based on the unanimous consensus of 
City Council Members, was approved to proceed with the project.  (Reference:  CAF 12-
28; Ordinance 12-22) (See Ordinance Book 8, p 395) 

 
 b) FY 12 Budget Amendment #34, Creating Contingency Budget for Construction of 

the US Hwy #1 Sewer Project. This item allows for Council to appropriate funds from 
the operating funds’ contingency accounts for the costs of replacing the water main on 
Lamb Street which was deteriorated beyond repair. (Reference:  CAF 12-31, Ordinance 
12-18) (See Ordinance Book 8, p 387) 

 
 c) An Ordinance Repealing the Availability Charge for Failing to Connect to Utilities.  

This item reflects the consensus of Council that adopting a failure to connect to City 
sewer fee should be delayed requiring the repeal of Ordinance 12-11, adopted on 13 
February 2012.  (Reference:  CAF 12-A-14; Ordinance 12-A-11) (See Below) 

 
 d) Approving FY 12-13 Budget Review Calendar and Scheduling of Special Council 

Budget Work Sessions.  This item provides dates for the budget work sessions.  
(Reference:  CAF 12-38, Resolution 12-20) (See Resolution Book 2, p 289) 

 
Mayor O’Geary asked if anyone wished to remove an item from the Consent Agenda.  Following 
a brief discussion item (c), An Ordinance Repealing the Availability Charge for Failing to 
Connect to Utilities was removed Mayor O’Geary asked for a motion to approve the consent 
Agenda as presented. 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of the Consent Agenda items a), b) and d).  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Kearney and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Coffey, 
Inscoe, Rainey, Daeke, Daye and Kearney.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Davis 
and Peace-Jenkins. 
 
An Ordinance Repealing the Availability Charge for Failing to Connect to Utilities.  
(Reference:  CAF 12-A-14; Ordinance 12-A-11) 
 
Council Member Daeke summarized his statements from the prior meeting, saying citizens were 
told they did not have to hook up, they were given an option with a reduction in cost from $1,000 
to $500, and citizens should not have to pay for something they do not use.  There is the 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 26 March 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 9 of 10 

possibility of grant funds which the Council of Government (COG) seems to feel qualified 
citizens could utilize and Mr. Daeke felt the grant option should be offered. Mr. Daeke said he 
understood there was an ordinance in the books that had not been enforced and felt it should be 
enforced going forward. 
 
Council Member Coffey expressed her feelings that the law should be enforced and suggested a 
payment schedule be considered.  City Attorney Zollicoffer said he thought the ordinance was 
not enforced due to an oversight. 
 
Council Member Kearney said the Council should legislate for the good of the majority of 
citizens and didn’t feel decisions should be made under pressure.  Mr. Kearney said the Council 
needed to do what is right for the majority of citizens. 
 
Council Member Rainey agreed with Council Member Daeke saying he did not feel it was right 
to be charged for something not used. 
 
Council Member Inscoe suggested repealing this ordinance for 24 months giving Council an 
opportunity to review the budget, and time to see how many citizens qualify for the grant.  
Council Member Kearney agreed with the moratorium saying it would also allow time to look 
for other economic incentives. 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved to repeal Ordinance 12-A-11 for 24 months at which time it 
would be revisited.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES:  Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, and Daeke.  NO:  None.  
ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Davis and Peace-Jenkins. 
  
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk advised no citizen requested an opportunity to address City Council on no-agenda 
items. 
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem/Chairman Pro-Tem (No Report) 
b) City Manager – Mr. Griffin said the agreement with the County for the alternative E-911 

facility have gone forward with only a few minor change orders.  There will be a 
groundbreaking ceremony on April 5th at 11:00 a.m. at the Operations Center. 

c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk (No Report) 

 
Before going into Closed Session, City Manager Griffin asked Engineering Director, Peter 
Sokalski to respond to Council Member Inscoe request for an update on the Shirley Drive 
problem. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 26 March 2012 Regular Short Meeting Minutes  
Page 10 of 10 

Mr. Sokalski summarized saying following the study by Hazen and Sawyer, the surge problem 
seems to come from Oxford and two pump stations in the Oxford area where large spikes 
occurred.  The City attempted to change the valve opening/closing to as slow as possible which 
did not make much difference so another resource is being attempted --- basically going from the 
least expensive solution to the most expensive solution. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the expense cost incurred was being taken from the KLRWS 
budget since that is where the problem was identified.  Mr. Sokalski responded yes and stated 
Council would be updated as the work continues. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed 
Session and stated there would be no report following the session. 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(6), two (2) Personnel Matters and G.S. §143-318.11(a)(3) regarding three (3) 
Attorney-Client Privilege Matters, one being a lawsuit entitled City of Henderson vs. Henderson 
Motels and Others and another relating to Halim vs. Donovan. Motion seconded by Council 
Member Kearney and unanimously approved. (Council convened in closed session at 7:15 p.m.) 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene into open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Coffey and unanimously approved. (Council convened in open session at 8:40 
p.m.) 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey 
and unanimously approved.  (Council convened in open session at 8:40 p.m.) 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



 

Minute Book 42 
26 March 2012 Work Session Minutes  

Page 1 of 2 

City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Work Session 

26  March 2012  

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Garry D. Daeke and George M. Daye.         
 
ABSENT 
 
Brenda G. Peace-Jenkins and Lonnie Davis, Jr. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier and Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom 
Spain.  
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 26 March 2011 Work Session of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor 
James D. O’Geary at 8:41 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  No requests were made to 
adjust the Agenda.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council.  It was the consensus of 
Council to accept the Agenda as presented. 



 

Minute Book 42 
26 March 2012 Work Session Minutes  

Page 2 of 2 

WORK SESSION ITEMS 
 
Authorizing the Adoption of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works Asset Management 
Plan.  (Reference: CAF 12-43; Resolution 12-31) 
 
City Manager Griffin advised Council that Assistant City Manager Frazier would comment on 
the plan and that HWRF Director Spain was available to answer any questions Council might 
have at this time.  
 
Assistant City Manager Frazier stated part of the process in applying for and receiving the State 
Revolving Loan for this project requires an asset management plan.  Mr. Spain, Mr. Frazier and  
O’Brien and Gere have worked closely to compile the plan.  Mr. Frazier said a full bound copy 
of the plan will be provided but due to time constraints and the size of the plan the appendixes 
were not included in the handout at this meeting.  The purpose of the Plan is to establish a ratio 
of one (1) or better and to provide guidance as the project moves forward.  Mr. Frazier said the 
Plan needs to be adopted by Council no later than the second meeting in April. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked that review of this material be deferred until Council has time to 
review the Plan. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked the consensus of City Council.  It was the consensus of Council to bring 
this matter to the next meeting. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 8:51 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

28 March 2012 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 12-48 Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-26, Adopting Vance 

County’s Language Access Plan 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 CV 2: Citizen/Customer Friendly:  We value our citizens and customers and will work with 

them in a courteous professional manner.  
 CV 10: Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance and 

operations of the City. 
 

Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-26, Adopting Vance County’s Language Access Plan  
 
Executive Summary 
 
The City of Henderson has requested and received permission from Vance County Manager 
Jerry Ayscue, to adopt the Vance County Language Access Plan.  This plan is a requirement by 
the State and Federal government in order to continue to participate in any Community Block 
Grant Programs which ensures compliance with Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964.  It requires 
that recipients of federal funds take responsible steps to ensure meaningful access to programs 
for citizens with limited English proficiency.  
 
Vance County Health Department and the Social Service Department have Spanish bilingual 
staff members. Vance County will provide, when needed, oral interpretation and written 
translation of all vital documents required to provide housing rehabilitation services to limited 
English proficient citizens.  A statement in Spanish will be posted at the end of CDBG public 
notices.  Vance County will maintain a record of all such services provided and will complete an 
annual compliance report.  Any complaints received regarding this will be filed and processed 
through the County Manager.   
 
Enclosure: 
 

1. Resolution 12-26 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  09 Apr 12 Regular Meeting



 2

 

RESOLUTION 12-26 
A RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF 
VANCE COUNTY’S LANGUAGE ACCESS PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 

2012, and during said Retreat identified the City’s Core Values and Principals that Guide our 
Work; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses two of those Core Values as follows: CV 2: Citizen/ Customer 

Friendly; We value our citizens and customers and will work with them in a courteous 
professional manner; and,  CV 10: Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the 
governance and operations of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which prohibits discrimination 

based on the ground of race, color, or national origin by any entity receiving federal financial 
assistance; and  

 
WHEREAS, the language access plan is a tool used to promote and support compliance of Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964; and  
 
WHEREAS, Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires any HUD fund or grant recipient to adopt 

a language Access Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson is participating in the Community Development Block Grant program 

and other HUD revitalization programs; and  
 
WHEREAS, Vance County has an approved language access plan in place; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson is eligible to be covered under the Vance County Plan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL that it does hereby 

adopt the Vance County Language Access Plan being more fully articulated in Attachment A to 
this Resolution. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-26, upon motion of Council Member __________ and second by Council 
Member ________ and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
__________ on this the 9th day of April 2012:  YES:.  NO:.  ABSTAIN:   .  ABSENT:   . 

__________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. *** 



 3

Resolution 12-26 
Attachment A 

 



 4

 



 5

 



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

28 March 2012 
 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 12-47 Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-25, Adopting Vance 

County’s Fair Housing Plan 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 CV 2: Citizen/Customer Friendly: We value our citizens and customers and will work with 

them in a courteous, professional manner. 
 CV 3: Fairness: We value equity and will be fair in how we work with citizens and 

customers and how we implement City policies, regulations and ordinances. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-25, Adopting Vance County’s Fair Housing Plan 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The City of Henderson has requested and received permission from Vance County Manager 
Jerry Ayscue to adopt the Vance County Fair Housing Plan.  This plan is a requirement by the 
State and Federal government in order to continue to participate in any Community Block Grant 
Programs.  
 
Under this plan it is required that obstacles in furthering Fair Housing be identified and analyzed. 
This plan already covers City and County activities.  It requires reporting to be done by the 
County describing the Fair Housing quarterly activities. It instructs any complaints regarding 
Fair Housing be directed to the County Administrator of the Fair Housing Plan, which is the 
County Manager or his designee.   
 
Enclosure: 
 

1. Resolution 12-25 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  09 Apr 12 Regular Meeting



 2

RESOLUTION 12-25 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE  
ADOPTION OF THE VANCE COUNTY’S FAIR HOUSING PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 

2012, and during said Retreat identified the City’s Core Values and Principals that Guide our 
Work; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses two of those Core Values as follows: CV 2: Citizen/ Customer 

Friendly; We value our citizens and customers and will work with them in a courteous 
professional manner; and,  CV 3: Fairness:  We value equity and will be fair in how we work 
with citizens and customers and how we implement City policies, regulations and ordinances; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 Fair Housing and the 

amended Fair Housing Amendment Act of 1988; and 
 
WHEREAS, Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires any HUD fund or grant 

recipients adopt and participate in an active Fair Housing Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson is participating in the Community Development Block Grant 

program and other HUD revitalization programs; and  
 
WHEREAS, Vance County has an approved Fair Housing Plan in place; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson is eligible to be covered under the Vance County Plan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL that it 

does hereby authorize the adoption of  the Vance County Fair Housing Plan, being more 
fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-25, upon motion of Council Member __________ and second by Council 
Member ________ and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
__________ on this the 9th day of April 2012:  YES:.  NO:.  ABSTAIN:   .  ABSENT:   . 
 

__________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. *** 



 3

Resolution 12-25 
Attachment A 

 



 4

 



 5

 



 6

 
 



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

9 April 2012 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-45 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12—34, Grant Application for funding 
through the US Department of Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grant Program for 
2012.  

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
  Approval of Resolution 12-34, Grant Application for funding through the US Department of 

Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grant Program for 2012. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Chief Sidwell has requested the Council’s review and approval of an application to the US 
Department of Justice’s BJA Justice Assistance Grant Program for 2012 to fund overtime pay for 
sworn officers of the Henderson Police Department.  
 
The grant, which does not require a cash grant match, must be divided with the Vance County 
Sheriff’s Office as a “disparate jurisdiction” per Department of Justice guidelines. The full 
amount allocated by the Department of Justice is $17,120.00. We propose to divide this 
allocation with the Sheriff’s Office in the same manner as past US Department of Justice BJA 
JAG Grants with 60% being allocated to the City of Henderson and 40% allocated to Vance 
County. Under this dispersion the City of Henderson would receive $10,272.00 and Vance 
County $6,848.00. The US Department of Justice requires that agencies receiving funds to be 
divided with a disparate jurisdiction must complete a Memorandum of Understanding. A copy of 
this Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Henderson and Vance County is 
included and will be forwarded to the Vance County Board of Commissioners for their action, if 
approved.  
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 

Agenda Item: _________ 
 

Council Meeting: 9 April 12 Regular Meeting 



 2

The grant application must be reviewed by the City Council at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
grant application being submitted to the US Department of Justice and a time for public 
comment must be provided. The grant application is due for electronic submission to the US 
Department of Justice on March 14, 2012. The anticipated notification date if the grant is 
accepted is 07/01/2012. The grant term would be the same as the Federal Budget Year for 2012-
2013: October 1, 2012 to September 30, 2013.  
 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 12-34 
2. Internal Process to Decide Whether Grant Application is Appropriate 



 3

RESOLUTION  12-34 
 
 

A RESOLUTON AUTHORIZING THE APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDING FROM 
THE US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE BJA JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 

PROGRAM FOR 2012  
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2012 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows: 
 KSO 2: To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community and KSO 8: To Provide 
 Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet  the  
 Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory  Authorities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department is the law enforcement agency with the 

responsibility for law enforcement within the City of Henderson and 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department seeks to use sworn officers to address crime and 

disorder problems within the City more effectively and safely; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department has successfully applied for and received grant 

funding for Law Enforcement purposes from the US Department of Justice BJA Justice 
Assistance Grant Program (BJA JAG) in the past, and 

 
WHEREAS, the US Department of Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grants Program has 

announced that funding applications be submitted to their program for consideration for 
funding in the 2012-2013 Federal Fiscal Year, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson and Vance County have entered into and executed 

Memorandums of Understanding with regards to funding from the US Department of 
Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grants in the past, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson and Vance County have agreed to disperse the funds from 

US Department of Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grant Programs in the past with 60% of 
the funding being dispersed to the City of Henderson and 40% to Vance County as a 
disparate jurisdiction, and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has been allocated by the US Department of Justice BJA 

Justice Assistance Grants Program as eligible to apply for $17,120.00 in funding.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 

authorize the Chief of Police of the Henderson Police Department to submit this 
application, for grant funding in the amount of $17,120.00 and authorizes the City 
Manager to approve said Application, being more fully articulated in Attachment A to 



 4

this Resolution, and the Memorandum of Understanding with Vance County, being more 
fully articulated in Attachment B to this Resolution, on behalf of the City. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-34, upon motion of Council Member ************* and second 
by Council Member **********, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the 
following votes and was ******** on this the 9th day of April, 2012:  YES:  .  NO  .  
 ABSTAIN:  .  ABSENT:         . 
 

_____________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST:  
       
________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42,  p. ***. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5

Resolution 12-34 
Attachment A 

Description of the proposed program activities for the four (4) year period and analysis of 
need: 
 
 The Henderson Police Department and the Vance County Sheriff’s Office are applying 

jointly for the allocated funding of $17,120 under the BJA Justice Assistance Grant Program for 

2011. By joint agreement of the local governing bodies of the two agencies (The City of 

Henderson City Council and the Vance County Board of Commissioners, respectively,) the 

Henderson Police Department will receive $10,272 in funding and $6,848 in funding will be 

forwarded to the Vance County Sheriff’s office. This agreement has been formalized in a 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), a copy of which is included with this application as a 

PDF file via the Grants Management System.  

 The Henderson Police Department is requesting to use its portion of allocated funds to 

fund overtime for hours worked on Community Revitalization Initiative activities to allow the 

Police Department to expand our partnerships with citizen groups, government agencies and 

private businesses to reduce part I crimes, particularly Burglary and Larceny within the City of 

Henderson.  

  The Community Revitalization Initiative (CRI) consists of a comprehensive plan of 

dealing with the high crime rates indicated in the application through specific training, analysis, 

and investigation strategies for law enforcement. It is also a comprehensive collaboration 

between law enforcement, the affected communities (through citizen's groups) and rental 

property managers, private businesses, utility providers, local media and other governmental 

agencies to help promote both prevention and intervention efforts. The Department's projected 

budget for FY 2012-2013 will not include funding for premium overtime (time and one-half) of 

police department personnel to address the law enforcement aspects of the CRI, due to the City’s 



 6

current economic conditions. Efforts include targeting larcenies and burglaries with saturated 

patrols, directed traffic enforcement and surveillance.  Officers work and are paid premium 

overtime in assignments directed at addressing some of the environmental problems that affect 

areas in which such property crimes are the heaviest. These areas have a higher percentage of 

rental housing than occupant owned housing and many vacant houses that are often used for 

crimes such as drug sales/use. Officers will continue to work with City Code Compliance and 

Fire Department personnel to identify and address problems such as vacant houses and houses in 

which residents are living in sub-standard conditions. Officers work with utility providers such 

as the City Finance and Water Departments, Progress Energy, Century Link and Time-Warner 

Cable to deal with the high numbers of utility theft and fraud in Henderson.  Officers working 

these CRI assignments are not only trained to be familiar with the housing problems and 

conditions in the area but are equipped as to what resources can assist persons living in these 

conditions. The CRI has developed and will continue to work with the association of rental 

property owners and continue training on crime prevention and maintaining a livable, safe and 

healthy community. The Department will continue educating citizens on the process of charging 

and trying persons with property crimes within the local court system.  Property Owners and 

managers will continue to work with the Police Department to maintain a joint data-base of all 

rental properties within the City, as well as all rental properties that are vacant. The City of 

Henderson and the CRI group will work to establish more partnerships in the coming year.  

The City of Henderson's per capita Part 1 crime rates are among the highest in NC and higher 

than many comparatively sized departments in the US. Following the implementation of the CRI 

initiative in 2009-2010 the annual rates of burglary fell from 590 to 561 in 2010 and to 416 in 

2011. Larceny totals increased from 2010's 1311 to 1353 due to an increase in larceny incidents 



 7

discovered and reported due to CRI and Weed and Seed related projects. Property Crime 

dropped overall from 1,924 incidents in 2010 to 1,850 incidents in 2011. Overall Part I crimes 

decreased from 2,071 in 2010 to 2,004 in 2011.   

 The Vance County Sheriff’s Office is requesting to use its portion of allocated funds to 

purchase needed equipment for sworn deputies for which budgeted funds are not available. 

Funds will be used to purchase nine (9) HP Netbook Notebook Computers, three (3) 

handcuff/magazine cases and four (4) rain jackets. The equipment will be issued to full time 

sworn deputies for their use. The notebook computers will be used to update laptop style 

computers previously used.  



 8

Budget Worksheet 
 

A. Personnel    $8,525 
 
            Name                   Computation  Cost 
 
Various Officers 275 hours x $31.00 $8,525 
 
 
 
B. Fringe Benefits   $1,582 
 
           Name                Computation (Rate)                         Cost 
 
FICA $17,019 x .0620 $529 
Retirement $17,019 x .0735 $627 
Other $17,019 x .05 $426 
 
 
C. Travel    $0 
 

Purpose         Location      Item  Computation  Cost 
 
 
 
D. Equipment   $6,848 
 
 Item                               Computation  Cost 
 
HP 1104 Atom Netbook Computers      $695.39 X 9                        $6,258.51 
Computer Freight                                                                               $116.56 
Magazine Handcuff Cases                     $27.99 X 3                          $83.97 
Reversible Rain Jackets                         $90.00 X 4                          $363.96 
Shipping and Handling on Equipment                                              $25.00 
 
 
E. Supplies    $165 
 
 Supply Item                                 Computation  Cost 
 
CRI Brochures and Printing 
 
 
 
 
F. Construction   $0 



 9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G. Consultants/Contracts  $0 
 
Consultant Fees 
 Name  Service  Computation               Cost  
 
 
 
 
Contracts 
 Item  Cost 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H. Other    $0 
 
 Description                        Computation               Cost 
 
 
 
 
 
Total Direct Costs   $17,120 
 
 
I. Indirect Costs 
 
 
No indirect costs are projected for this project.  
 
 
 
 
  

 Description Computation  Cost 
 
 



 10

Budget Summary Page 
 

 
A. Personnel/Salary Costs  __$8,525______ 
 
B.  Fringe Benefits   __$1,582             ______ 
 
C.  Travel    __$0            _______ 
 
D.  Equipment   __$6,848____ 
 
E.  Supplies    __$165     __________ 
 
F.  Construction   Unallowable 
 
G.  Consultants/Contracts  __$0_____________ 
 
H.  Other    __$           _________ 
 
I.  Indirect Costs   __$0_____________ 
 
 
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS  __$17,120    
 
 
Federal Request    __$17.120_____ 
 

 
Applicant Funds, if any,  __$0______________ 
  to be applied to this project 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Budget Narrative: 
 



 11

A. Personnel 
 

This project will fund overtime for hours worked on CRI activities to allow the Police 
Department to expand our partnerships with citizen groups, government agencies and private 
businesses to reduce part I crimes, particularly Burglary and Larceny within the City of 
Henderson. Officers will be assigned to work these projects based on the officer’s schedule 
and project need.  
 
B. Fringe Benefits  
 
Funds will be used to pay required fringe benefits for officers working premium overtime on 
CRI related projects and assignments.  
 
C. Travel 

 
No travel costs are requested with this budget.   
 
D. Equipment 

 
The Vance County Sheriff’s Office will purchase nine (9) notebook style computers, new 
Magazine/Handcuff cases and new raincoats to equip sworn Sheriff’s Deputies on duty. 

 
E. Supplies 

 
A small amount of funding is requested to cover the cost of printing and distributing flyers 
with Community Revitalization Initiative information, advisories, etc. to the persons and 
businesses who are shareholders in the CRI initiative.  

 
F. Construction 

 
Construction expenses are not allowed under this grant. 

 
 

G. Consultants/Contracts 
 

There are no supply costs with this grant. 
 

H. Other 
 
There are no other costs with this grant. 

 
I. Indirect Costs 

 
 $0 
 
 



 12

All budget costs have been based on necessary purchases and reasonable costs for this project. If 
approved, all budget purchases will be made under the policies and procedures of the City of 
Henderson Finance or County of Vance Finance Department, State of North Carolina 
Department of Administration procurement rules and the guidelines of the Bureau of Justice 
Assistance and the Office of Justice Programs. All program expenditures will be reported on a 
quarterly basis both in the program’s performance measurement reports and any other required 
financial report (SF-269).  
  



 13

1) The JAG application announcement and information was made available for review to 
the City of Henderson City Manager, Mr. Ray Griffin for distribution to the Henderson 
City Council 04/05/2012. The full application was made available to Mr. Griffin for 
distribution and review by the City Council on 04/09/2012.  This notification occurred 
over 30 days before submission of this application to the BJA via the Grants Management 
System. The information was forwarded to Mr. Jerry Ayscue, Vance County Manager, 
for review by the Vance County Board of Commissioners following the City of 
Henderson Council Meeting on 04/09/2012.  

 
2) The information was made public by the applying agency, the City of Henderson, in the 

agenda of the City of Henderson City Council prior to the Council’s regular meeting on 
04/09/2012.  At that meeting, to the extent of applicable law or established procedure, an 
opportunity to comment was provided to citizens and neighborhood or community 
organizations.  

 
3) A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has been executed and signed by each 

jurisdiction’s Authorize Representative, outlining each jurisdiction’s allocation and 
indicating which jurisdiction is serving as the applicant/fiscal agent for the joint funds. 
This MOU is transmitted with this application as a PDF file.  



 14

Applicant’s Name:  City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
Title of the Project: Henderson Vance BJA JAG Program 2012 
 
Goals of the Project: 
 

Henderson Police Department Project Goal(s):1) Reduction of rates of Robbery and 
Part 1 Property Crimes, particularly larcenies.2) Reduction of crime reports in rental 
housing/apartments.3) Increase partners participating in the CRI Initiative.  
 
Vance County Sheriff’s Office Project Goal(s): Purchase updated equipment to be 
issued to sworn deputies to upgrade older equipment.   

 
 

Strategies to be used: 
 
The Henderson Police Department Community Revitalization Initiative (CRI) consists of a 
comprehensive plan of dealing with the high crime rates indicated in the application through 
specific training, analysis, and investigation strategies for law enforcement. It is also a 
comprehensive collaboration between law enforcement, the affected communities (through 
citizen's groups) and rental property managers, private businesses, utility providers, local media 
and other governmental agencies to help promote both prevention and intervention efforts. 
Efforts include targeting larcenies and burglaries with saturated patrols, directed traffic 
enforcement and surveillance.  Officers work and are paid premium overtime in assignments 
directed at addressing some of the environmental problems that affect areas in which such 
property crimes are the heaviest.  
 
The Vance County Sheriff’s Office plan includes the purchase of “notebook” style computers to 
replace older “laptop” style computers currently in use. Other funds will be used to purchase 
duty leather gear and raincoats for deputies.  
 
Top Five Program Identifiers: 
 
1) Community Policing (Law Enforcement) 
2) Crime Prevention (Crime Prevention and Education) 
3) Gangs (Law Enforcement) 
4) Overtime (Program Planning, Evaluation and Technology) 
5) Equipment – General (Program Planning, Evaluation and Technology) 
 
  



 15

 
The State of North Carolina 

County of Vance 

 

KNOW BY ALL THESE PRESENT 

INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF HENDERSON, NORTH 
CAROLINA AND THE COUNTY OF VANCE, NORTH CAROLINA 

REGARDING GMS APPLICATION NUMBER 2012-H1083-NC-DJ BJA FY 2012 
EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM: LOCAL 

SOLICITATION FORMULA PROGRAM AWARD 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this the ____ day ______, 2012 by and between 
 the County of Vance, acting by and through its governing body, the Board of             
 Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as COUNTY, and the City of Henderson, acting 
 by and through its governing body, the City Council, hereinafter referred to as CITY, 
 both of Vance County, State of North Carolina, wittnesseth:  

WHEREAS, this agreement is made under the authority of the City of Henderson and Vance 
 County to enter into cooperative agreements; and 

WHEREAS, each governing body, in performing the governmental functions or in paying for 
 the performance of governmental functions hereunder, shall make that performance or 
 those payments from current revenues legally available to that party; and 

WHEREAS, each governing body finds that the performance of this Agreement is in the best  
 interest of both parties, that the undertaking will benefit the public, and that the division 
 of costs fairly compensates the performing party for the services or functions under this 
 agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY agrees to provide the COUNTY $6,848 from JAG award total of 
 $17,120 for the Vance County Sheriff’s Office, and  

WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY believe it to be in their best interests to reallocate the JAG 
 funds.  

NOW THEREFORE, the CITY AND COUNTY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  

SECTION 1: CITY agrees to pay COUNTY a total of $6,848 of JAG funds. 

SECTION 2: COUNTY agrees to use $6,848 for the Vance County Sheriff’s Office until 
September 30, 2014 or until such funds are expended. 

SECTION 3: Nothing in the performance of this Agreement shall impose any Liability for 
claims against COUNTY other than claims for which the Tort Laws of the State of North 
Carolina may impose liability.  

Resolution 12-34  
Attachment B



 16

SECTION 4: Nothing in the performance of this Agreement shall impose any liability for claims 
against CITY other than claims for which the Tort Laws of the State of North Carolina may 
impose liability.  

SECTION 5: Each party to the agreement will be responsible for its own actions in providing 
services under this agreement and shall not be liable for any city liability that may arise from the 
furnishing of the services by the other party.  

SECTION 6: The parties to this Agreement do not intend for any third party to obtain a right by 
virtue of this Agreement.  

SECTION 7: By entering into this Agreement, the parties do not intent to create any obligations 
express or implied other than those set out herein, further, this Agreement shall not create any 
rights in any party not a signatory hereto. 

 

CITY OF HENDERSON, North Carolina  COUNTY OF VANCE, North Carolina 

 

__________________________________ _______________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor    Eddie L. Wright, Chairman 

 

_________________________________ _______________________________________ 

A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  Jerry L. Ayscue, County Manager 
 

ATTEST:     ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk  Kelly H. Grissom, County Clerk 

 

Approved as to Legal Form:   Approved as to Legal Form:  

 

_________________________________ _______________________________________ 

John H. Zollicoffer, City Attorney  County Attorney 

 

  



 17

CITY OF HENDERSON 
 

INTERNAL PROCESS TO DECIDE WHETHER  
GRANT APPLICATION IS APPROPRIATE 

 
 

Department:  Police  Staff Contact:  Captain P.L. Twisdale 
 
Funding Source: Bureau of Justice Assistance J.A.G. Grants Program FY 2012 
 
Grant/Project Name: BJA JAG 2012 
 
Date Application Due:  8:00 pm EST May 14, 2012 
 
This is a   NEW  or  X RECURRING Grant. 
 
Brief Project Summary: 
 
This grant is a recurring annual grant. Information on the grant program was given to 
the City during the Budget Process as this is a recurring grant. This report includes the 
details of the proposed budget. Due to the Vance County Sheriff’s Office being 
designated as a “Disparate Jurisdiction” (meaning that they were not automatically 
designated to receive funding while we were) we are required to file a joint application 
with them. The allocation splits the proceeds from this grant as 60% to the City and 40% 
to the County.  
 
The total allocation for this year is $17,120. The City’s portion will be $10,272 and the 
County $6,848. 
 
The Henderson Police Department is requesting to use its portion of allocated funds to 
pay officer’s premium overtime to continue to work projects related to the Community 
Revitalization Initiative as outlined in the CRI grant program. The BJA JAG 2011 will be 
fully utilized prior to the end of FY 2011 and 2012 and further grant funds for overtime 
are not available.  
 
The grant application requires that the City of Henderson and the County of Vance 
adopt a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding the award and distribution of 
the grant (Draft copy attached).  
 
The grant applications requires that the Grant Application be reviewed by the City 
Council and the County Commissioners and be available for review and comment by 
the public at least 30 days prior to the submission of the application. Due to the 
application deadline being 05/14/2012, we are requesting that the grant 
applications included with this request be added to the agenda for Council review 
and public comment at the 04/09/2012 Council Meeting.  
 

CAF 12-45 
Attachment #2 



 18

Maximum amount available from Funding Source: $17,120 (both City and County). 
 
Anticipated Award Notification Date:  07/01/2012 
 
Anticipated Grant Term:  Start Date: 09/01/2012 
    Finish Date:  06/01/2013 
 
Amount to be requested:  $17,120 (both City and County) 
 
Does the amount of the match requirement or other grant requirements necessitate City 
Council approval prior to the award?  X Yes   No 
 
Eligible types of match: This grant does not require a match.  
 
If the match is cash, where will the match come from? (Provide Account Number) 
 
This grant will not require a match. 
 
Is this project a   X cash award or reimbursement (or drawdown)? 
 
This project would be an advance drawdown of funds and would require a Grant Project 
Account as in past BJA JAG accounts. 
 
If this is a reimbursement grant, will funds be available?  NA 
 
Is this project included in: 
 
  Departmental Budget  No 
  Capital Improvements Plan No 
 
No. This grant was not announced until after the department had submitted its budget 
request for the FY 2012-2013 fiscal year.  
 
Grant funds will be used for the following: 
 
 Premium overtime to allow officers to continue to work proactive projects under 
the Community Revitalization Initiative.  
 
How will the program be funded after the grant expires?  
 
 The CRI will continue either as part of the department’s regular operating budget 
or through future grant funds or other funding sources.  
 
If the department receives only a portion of the amount requested, how will the project 
be funded? 
 



 19

The grant application is requesting the full amount for this project. 
 
Some additional questions to consider: 
 
Are any other departments within the City of Henderson eligible for this funding? 
 
No.  
 
Are any other departments within the City of Henderson willing to collaborate on this 
project?  
 
This is a law enforcement project only.  
 
Will this project duplicate or compete with another service or program provided by the 
City of Henderson or other local agency?  
 
No. This is a law enforcement only grant.  
 



Page 1 of 10 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

3 April 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 12-43 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-31, Authorizing the Adoption of the 
Publicly Owned Treatment Works Asset Management Plan. 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-31, Authorizing the Adoption of the Publicly Owned Treatment 

Works Asset Management Plan. 
 
 

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure 
 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The City of Henderson’s Sanitary Sewer Rehab Project is set to go out to bid on 1 May 2012.  
One of the requirements of receiving this loan (1/2 in the form of principal forgiveness) is that 
the City must develop and adopt an asset management plan.  This plan has been prepared by 
O’Brien & Gere Engineers as approved by Resolution 11-52. 
 
The plan is a combination of the capital improvements plan, mapping of the existing sewer 
system and a listing of assets associated with the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility and 
Sanitary Sewer System.  This plan will be utilized as a policy to guide budgeting and financial 
planning for the water reclamation facility and collection system. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 12-31 
2. Resolution 11-52 

  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  9 Apr 12 Regular Meeting 



Page 2 of 10 
 

R E S O L U T I O N   12-31 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITYOF HENDERSON  
PUBLICLY OWNED TREATMENT WORKS ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses two of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: to 

Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure and KSO 8: To Provide Financial 
Resourcing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson City Council recognizes the need for an improved water 

reclamation facility and collection system, as well as the need to control costs associated 
with the same; and 

 
WHEREAS, the capital improvement program within the asset management plan provides a 

framework for accomplishing needed improvements to the water reclamation facility and 
collection system; and 

 
WHEREAS, adoption of an Asset Management Plan is required to receive the Clean Water State 

Revolving Fund loan that was awarded to the City of Henderson in March 2011. 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT: 
 

1. The City of Henderson Publicly Owned Treatment Works Asset Management Plan for 
Fiscal Year 2011-2012 through 2020-2021 is adopted as a policy to guide capital 
budgeting and financial planning for the water reclamation facility and collection system.  

 
2. The user fees associated with sewer service will be increased as necessary to implement 

the adopted Publicly Owned Treatment Works Asset Management Plan. 
 

3. The adopted Publicly Owned Treatment Works Asset Management Plan supersedes all 
previously adopted plans but that it may be amended by the City Council with budgetary 
actions or other actions related to the authorization of specific projects and by the 
adoption of future Asset Management Plans. 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 10 
 

The foregoing Resolution 12-31 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2010:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, pp. **. 



Page 4 of 10 
 

RESOLUTION   11—52 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN ENGINEERING SERVICES  

CONTRACT WITH O’BRIEN & GERE 
 

WHEREAS,   the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2010 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS,   two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows:  

KSO 8: To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 
Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities;   and KSO 5:  To  Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental 
Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction or replacement of 
wastewater collection systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) performed a sewer survey analysis that identified 

and prioritized the need for the repair and replacement of various mains within the 
wastewater collection system and formulated  a  project described as The Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project, the Project, to assist the City in the control of infiltration and 
inflow;  and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Council authorized City Administration to submit a grant application on 23 

August 2010 via Resolution 10—83, and approved acceptance of the State Revolving 
Fund Grant/Loan on 25 October 2010 via Resolution 10—107; and  

 
WHEREAS, a Masters Services Agreement was executed on 13 September 2010 with O’Brien 

& Gere; and 
 
WHEREAS,  O’Brien & Gere is familiar with the scope of work to be performed as well as the 

appropriate documentation and procedures necessary to successfully complete the 
services needed for this project; and 

 
WHEREAS,  O’Brien & Gere was approved by the City Council through Resolution 10-117 to 

submit a Preliminary Engineering Report, which was successfully completed; and 
  
WHEREAS,  during negotiations with O’Brien & Gere, the engineering service fee was reduced 

by $17,060. 
 
NOW  THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Henderson, North 

Carolina that it does hereby authorize the execution of an Engineering Services Contract 
with O’Brien & Gere in the amount of $149,000, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment No. 1 to this Resolution; and 



Page 5 of 10 
 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the grant award and 

other applicable documents as necessary to this contract approval; and 
 
The foregoing Resolution 11—52, upon motion of Council Member Peace-Jenkins and second 
by Council Member Rainey, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following 
votes and was APPROVED on this the 13th day of June 2011:  YES:  Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-
Jenkins, Daeke, Davis, Daye, Kearney and Coffey. NO  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. 

 

_____________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST:  

       

________________________________ 

Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

 

______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 42,  p. 198. 



Page 6 of 10 
 

 
 
 



Page 7 of 10 
 

 
 
 



Page 8 of 10 
 

 
 
 



Page 9 of 10 
 

 
 
 



Page 10 of 10 
 

 
 



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________      

 
29 March 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-54 

Consideration of Approval of 1) Ordinance 12-27, FY11-12 Budget Amendment #37, 
Amending General Fund 10 and Powell Bill Fund 11;  2)  Ordinance 12-28, FY 11-12 
Budget Amendment # 38, Amending Water Fund 30 and CIP Water Fund 43; 3) Ordinance 
12-29, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 39, Amending the CIP Regional Water Fund 46. 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals and Core Values Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 1:  Implement Performance Excellence 
 KSO 5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure 
 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of 1) Ordinance 12-27, FY11-12 Budget Amendment #37, Amending General Fund 10 and 

Powell Bill Fund 11;  2)  Ordinance 12-28, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 38, Amending Water 
Fund 30 and CIP Water Fund 43; 3) Ordinance 12-29, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 39, Amending 
the CIP Regional Water Fund 46. 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The purpose of Ordinance 12-27, FY 12 Budget Amendment # 37 is to bring the Powell Bill fund into 
balance with actual receipts from the State vs. budgeted estimates.  This results in a negative $8,744.  All 
Powell Bill operating expenditures occur within the General Fund, therefore in order to balance properly, 
a corresponding decrease in the General Fund 10-570 is necessary. 
 
The purpose of Ordinance 12-28 FY 12 Budget Amendment # 38 is two-fold.  One is to reconcile 
completed projects and authorize close out procedures for these projects.  The second purpose is to cover 
unanticipated expenditures in excess of budget due to large water breaks on Shirley Drive and at the Glass 
Plant off US Hwy 1. 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 April 12 Regular Meeting    
 



 2

The purpose of Ordinance 12-29 FY 12 Budget Amendment # 39 is also two-fold as it provides for 
reconciliation of ongoing projects and allocates unbudgeted revenue in the fund to the 20 MGD 
contingency fund. 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Ordinance 12-27 
2. Ordinance 12-28 
3. Ordinance 12-29 



 3

ORDINANCE  12—27  
 

FY 2011-2012 BUDGET AMENDMENT #37 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE GENERAL FUND 10 AND THE POWELL BILL FUND 11 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council) adopted its FY11-12 Operating 

Budget on 13 June 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time, said amendment 
incorporated in this Ordinance being more fully articulated in Attachment A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Powell Bill Allocation 11-110-411-120 450,000.00$  450,000.00$    (8,774.00)$        441,226.00$                  
-$              -$                -$                  -$                              

Total 450,000.00$  -$                 (8,774.00)$        441,226.00$                  
(8,774.00)$                     

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Powell Bill Transfer to General Fund 11-690-509-704 504,730.00$  504,730.00$    (8,774.00)$        495,956.00$                  
-$              -$                -$                  -$                              

Total 504,730.00$  504,730.00$    (8,774.00)$        495,956.00$                  
495,956.00$                  

Variance -$                 

Approved Current
Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Transfer from Powell Bill Fund 10-200-461-011 504,730.00$  504,730.00$    (8,774.00)$        495,956.00$                  
-$              -$                -$                  -$                              

Total 504,730.00$  504,730.00$    (8,774.00)$        495,956.00$                  
495,956.00$                  

Department Line Item Code Approved Current
1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

570: Street Auto Supplies Garage 10-570-503-105 48,355.00$    48,355.00$      (6,094.00)$        42,261.00$                    
570: Street Capital Equipment <$5000 10-570-507-400 5,000.00$      5,000.00$        (2,480.00)$        2,520.00$                      
570: Street Capital Outlay >$5000 10-570-507-405 17,500.00$   17,500.00$     (200.00)$          17,300.00$                   

Total 70,855.00$    70,855.00$      (8,774.00)$        62,081.00$                    
62,081.00$                    

Variance -$                 

Notes:

This amendment provides for several budget amendments bewtween several funds as follows:  
1) Powell Bill & General Fund to align Powell Bill to actual receipts vs. budget estimate and to 
provide for a corresponding reduction in 10-570 in order to keep budgets balanced; 

GENDERAL FUND EXPENDITURES: 10

Reference:
9 April 12 Meeting; CAF 12-54; Ord 12-27

Ordinance 12-27
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #37

POWELL BILL FUND REVENUES: 11

10: General Fund; 11: Powell Bill; FUNDS:

POWELL BILL FUND EXPENDITURES:11

GENERALFUND REVENUES: 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4

The foregoing Ordinance 12-27, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 9th day of April 2012.  YES:  . NO:.   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             
 

 
___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. *** 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-27 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 9 April 2012 (Minute Book 42, p.***). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
         



 5

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—27 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment #37 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-54; Ordinance 12-27) 

 
The purpose of this amendment is to bring the Powell Bill fund into balance with actual receipts 
from the State vs. budgeted estimate.  The difference is a negative $8,774.  In order to complete 
the balancing process, a corresponding decrease in General Fund 10-570 Streets is necessary 
since all Powell Bill operating expenditures occur within the General Fund.   
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: _______________________________  Date: _______________________ 
 Judith Woods, Accounting Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 



 6

ORDINANCE  12—28  
 

FY 2011-2012 BUDGET AMENDMENT #38 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE WATER FUND 30 AND THE CIP WATER FUND 43 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council) adopted its FY11-12 Operating 

Budget on 13 June 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council  has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the water distribution system, said fund referred to as 43: CIP Water 
Fund; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time, said amendment 
incorporated in this Ordinance being more fully articulated in Attachment A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Original Current
Department Line Item Code Budget Budget Amendment Revised

824: Perry Ave Trans from Cap Reserve Utili 43-433-461-006 72,550.00$        78,550.00$         -$                  78,550.00$                   
824: Total 72,550.00$         78,550.00$          -$                  78,550.00$                    

843: Brookhaven MHP NCDENR Grant 43-433-458-220 476,418.00$      490,948.00$       (34,507.00)$     456,441.00$                 
843: Total 476,418.00$       490,948.00$        (34,507.00)$      456,441.00$                  

844: Hydraulic Study Transfer from Water Fund 43-433-461-030 90,000.00$         90,000.00$          -$                  90,000.00$                    
Transfer from Regional Fund 43-433-461-064 39,000.00$        39,000.00$         -$                  39,000.00$                   

844: Total 129,000.00$       129,000.00$        -$                  129,000.00$                  

845: Harriett Street Transfer from Water Fund 43-433-461-030 75,000.00$         75,000.00$          75,000.00$                    
Transfer from Cap Res Utilities 43-433-461-006 -$                  56,612.00$         56,612.00$                   

845: Total 75,000.00$         131,612.00$        -$                  131,612.00$                  

846: Rate Study Transfer from Water Fund 43-433-461-030 15,000.00$         15,000.00$          15,000.00$                    
NC Rural Center Grant 43-433-458-162 40,000.00$        40,000.00$         (950.00)$           39,050.00$                   

846: Total 55,000.00$         55,000.00$          (950.00)$           54,050.00$                    

848: Red Bud Ck Bridge Trans from Cap Reserve Util 70 43-433-461-071 120,000.00$      120,000.00$       -$                  120,000.00$                 
848: Total 120,000.00$       120,000.00$        -$                  120,000.00$                  

849: Shirley Drive Transfer from Water Fund 43-433-461-030 10,000.00$        241,429.00$       -$                  241,429.00$                 
10,000.00$         241,429.00$        -$                  241,429.00$                  

850: 2" Line Transfer from Water Fund 43-850-369-030 39,000.00$        39,000.00$         39,000.00$                   
850: Total 39,000.00$         39,000.00$          -$                  39,000.00$                    

TOTAL FUND REVENUE SUMMARY -$                               
824: Perry Ave 72,550.00$         78,550.00$          -$                  78,550.00$                    

843: Brookhaven MHP 476,418.00$       490,948.00$        (34,507.00)$      456,441.00$                  
844: Hydraulic Study 129,000.00$       129,000.00$        -$                  129,000.00$                  

845: Harriett Street 75,000.00$         131,612.00$        -$                  131,612.00$                  
846: Rate Study 55,000.00$         55,000.00$          (950.00)$           54,050.00$                    

848: Red Bud Ck Bridge 120,000.00$       120,000.00$        -$                  120,000.00$                  
849: Shirley Drive 10,000.00$         241,429.00$        -$                  241,429.00$                  

850: 2" Line 39,000.00$        39,000.00$         -$                  39,000.00$                   
Total Fund Revenues 976,968.00$      1,285,539.00$    (35,457.00)$     1,250,082.00$               

Ordinance 12-28
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #38

CIP WATER FUND REVENUES: 43

30: Water & 43: CIP WaterFUNDS:

 
 



 7

Original Current
Department Line Item Code Budgget Budget Amendment Revised

824: Perry Ave Approved on 10 May 2010 via Ordinance 10-25; Amended via Ord 10-51 and Ord 12-02
824: Perry Ave Professional Services 43-824-500-400 1,161.00$           200.00$               -$                  200.00$                         
824: Perry Ave Contingency 43-824-509-900 5,804.00$           -$                     -$                  -$                               

Engineering 43-824-510-400 7,545.00$           6,965.00$            -$                  6,965.00$                      
Construction 43-824-509-900 58,040.00$         59,577.00$          -$                  59,577.00$                    

Transfer to 30: Water Fund 43-824-566-030 -$                  11,808.00$         -$                  11,808.00$                   
72,550.00$         78,550.00$          -$                  78,550.00$                    

843: Brookhaven MHP Project Approved on9 Nov 09 via Ordinance 09-84 & Amended 22 Nov 10 via Ordinance 10-79
843: Brookhaven MHP Contingency 43-843-509-900 38,827.00$         19,930.00$          (19,930.00)$      -$                               
843: Brookhaven MHP Planning/Design 43-843-510-100 56,925.00$         64,745.00$          (5,857.00)$        58,888.00$                    
843: Brookhaven MHP Legal/Administration 43-510-510-200 7,766.00$           7,665.00$            (5,842.00)$        1,823.00$                      
843: Brookhaven MHP Construction 43-843-510400 372,900.00$      398,608.00$       (2,878.00)$       395,730.00$                 

843: Total 476,418.00$       490,948.00$        (34,507.00)$      456,441.00$                  

844: Hydraulic Study Project Approved on14 June 2010 via Ordinance 10-32
844: Hydraulic Study Legal/Administration 43-844-510-200 2,100.00$           2,100.00$            (1,900.00)$        200.00$                         

Engineering 43-844-510-301 126,900.00$       126,900.00$        -$                  126,900.00$                  
Transfer to 30: Water Fund 43-844-561-030 -$                  -$                    1,900.00$         1,900.00$                     

129,000.00$       129,000.00$        -$                  129,000.00$                  

845: Harriet St Project Approved on 14 June 2010 via Ordinance 10-32 & Amended on 28 March 2011 via Ordinance 11-20
845: Harriett St Legal/Administration 43-845-510-002 500.00$              -$                     -$                  -$                               
845: Harriett St Engineering 43-845-510-301 4,500.00$           1,854.00$            -$                  1,854.00$                      
845: Harriett St Contingency 43-845-500-900 -$                   -$                     -$                  -$                               
845: Harriett St Construction 43-845-510-400 70,000.00$         113,053.00$        -$                  113,053.00$                  
845: Harriett St Resurfacing 43-845-503-400 -$                  16,705.00$         -$                  16,705.00$                   

75,000.00$         131,612.00$        -$                  131,612.00$                  

846: Water Rate Study Project Approved on 10 July 2010 via Ordinance 10-43
846: Rate Study Contracted Services 43-846-504-500 55,000.00$         55,000.00$          (950.00)$           54,050.00$                    

Transfer to 30: Water Fund 43-846-504-500 -$                  -$                    -$                  -$                              
55,000.00$         55,000.00$          (950.00)$           54,050.00$                    

848: Red Bud  Water Line Project Approved on 8 August 2011 via Ordinance 11-48
848: Red Bud Ck Bridge Construction 43-848-510-400 120,000.00$      120,000.00$       -$                  120,000.00$                 

120,000.00$       120,000.00$        -$                  120,000.00$                  

849: Shirley Drive Approved on 25 July 2011 via Ordinance 11-50 & on  22 August 2011 via Ordinance 11-30
849: Shirley Drive Legal/Administration 43-849-510-200 -$                   500.00$               (500.00)$           -$                               
849: Shirley Drive  Engineering 43-849-510-301 10,000.00$         10,000.00$          (1,047.00)$        8,953.00$                      
849: Shirley Drive  Construction 43-849-510-400 -$                   230,929.00$        (35,970.00)$      194,959.00$                  
849: Shirley Drive  Transfer to 30: Water Fund 43-849-516-030 -$                  -$                    37,517.00$      37,517.00$                   

10,000.00$         241,429.00$        -$                  241,429.00$                  

850: 2" Line Project Approved on 9 January 2012 via Ordinance 12-02
850: 2" Line Project Survey Work 43-850-223020 32,000.00$         32,000.00$          -$                  32,000.00$                    

Permit Fees 43-850-461-001 2,000.00$           2,000.00$            -$                  2,000.00$                      
Contingency 43-850-999-010 5,000.00$          5,000.00$           -$                  5,000.00$                     

39,000.00$         39,000.00$          -$                  39,000.00$                    
TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

824: Perry Ave 72,550.00$         78,550.00$          -$                  78,550.00$                    
843: Brookhaven MHP 476,418.00$       490,948.00$        (34,507.00)$      456,441.00$                  

844: Hydraulic Study 129,000.00$       129,000.00$        -$                  129,000.00$                  
845: Harriett St 75,000.00$         131,612.00$        -$                  131,612.00$                  

846: Rate Study 55,000.00$         55,000.00$          (950.00)$           54,050.00$                    
848: Red Bud Ck Bridge 120,000.00$       120,000.00$        -$                  120,000.00$                  

849: Shirley Drive 10,000.00$         241,429.00$        -$                  241,429.00$                  
850: 2" Line Project 39,000.00$        39,000.00$         -$                  39,000.00$                   

Total Fund Expenditures 976,968.00$      1,285,539.00$    (35,457.00)$     1,250,082.00$               

RECAP Fund 43 -$                               
Total Revenues 976,968.00$      1,285,539.00$    (35,457.00)$     1,250,082.00$               

Total Expenditures 976,968.00$      1,285,539.00$    (35,457.00)$     1,250,082.00$               
Variance -$                   -$                     -$                  -$                               

CIP WATER FUND EXPENDITURES: 43

 
 
 
 



 8

Budget Current
Department Line Item Code 1 Jul 11 Budget Amendment Revised

Transfer from 43: CIP Water 30-980-461-043 -$                  -$                    39,417.00$      39,417.00$                   
Total Revenues -$                  -$                    39,417.00$      39,417.00$                   

Budget Current
Department Line Item Code 1 Jul 11 Budget Amendment Revised

818: Distribution Purchase for Resale 30-818-504-800 2,554,800.00$   2,555,613.00$    39,417.00$      2,595,030.00$               
Total Expenditures 2,554,800.00$   2,555,613.00$    39,417.00$      2,595,030.00$               

Fund Variance -$                  -$                   -$                 -$                              

WATER FUND REVENUES: 30

WATER FUND EXPENDITURES: 30 `

843: Brookhaven MHP Water Lines See Ordinance 09-84 and Ordinance 10-79; not all funds were needed and reversions will remain with 
the State
See Ordinance 10-32844: Hydraulic Study

Notes:

The purpose of this extensive Ordinance amendment is to reconcile inactive accounts in preparation 
for budget closeout and to transfer reversions to Water Fund to help narrow the financial gap for 
purchase for resale.  This line is projected to be overspent due to system flushing and several major 
water line breaks at Glass Plant and Shirley Drive.

845: Harriett Street Water Line Replacement

See Ordinance 10-25, Ordinance 10-52 and Ordinance 12-02

846: Water Rate Study

848: Red Bud Bridge Water Line Replacement

849: Shirley Drive Water Line Replacement

850: 2" Water Line Planning/Engineering

See Ordinance 10-32 and Ordinance 11-20
See Ordinance 10-43

824: Perry Avenue Water Line Replacement

Reference:
9 Apr 12 Council Meeting; CAF 12-54, Ordinance 12-28, FY 12 Budget 
Amendment #38.

See Ordinance 11-48
See Ordinance 11-50 and Ordinance 11-30
See Ordinance 12-02

 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the City Manager and Finance Director are authorize to 

effect closeout, as appropriate, of the following completed capital improvement projects: 
 824 Perry Avenue Water Line Replacement 
 843 Brookhaven MHP Water Line Construction 
 844 Hydraulics Study 
 845 Harriett Street Water Line Replacement 
 846 Water Rate Study 
 849 Shirley Drive Water Line Replacement 

 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-28, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 9th day of April 2012.  YES:  . NO:.   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             
 

 
___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. *** 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 9

__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-28 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 9 April 2012 (Minute Book 42, p.***). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
         

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—28 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment #38 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-54; Ordinance 12-28) 

 
The purposes of this comprehensive budget amendment are two-fold.  First, the amendment 
provides for reconciliation of completed projects and authorizes close-out for same as noted in 
the second Now Therefore Be It Ordained clause in the Ordinance.  The second purpose is the 
transfer reversions to the Water Fund for allocation to the purchase for resale account to help 
mitigate unanticipated expenditures in excess of budget related to water loss due to large water 
breaks on Shirley Drive and at the Glass Plant off Rt. 1 By-Pass.    
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: _______________________________  Date: _______________________ 
 Judith Woods, Accounting Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



 10

ORDINANCE  12-29 
 

FY 2011-2012 BUDGET AMENDMENT #39 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE CIP REGIONAL WATER FUND 46 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council) adopted its FY11-12 Operating 

Budget on 13 June 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council  has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the regional water treatment system, said fund referred to as 46: CIP 
Regional Water Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time, said amendment 
incorporated in this Ordinance being more fully articulated in Attachment A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Original Current
Department Line Item Code Budget Budget Amendment Revised

935:   20 MGD Project NC Sales Tax Refund 466-411-035 150,600$ 
 

150,600$ 
 

24,700 $ 
 

175,300$ 
 935:   20 MGD Project Investments 466-444-010 11,368$ 

 
11,368$ 
 

25,886 $ 
 

37,254$ 
 935:   20 MGD Project Investments-Centura 466-444-020 159,142$ 

 
159,142$ 
 

-$ 
 

159,142$ 
 935:   20 MGD Project From Regional Water Fund 466-461-064 801,704$ 

 
801,704$ 
 

(149,988) $ 
  651,716$ 

 935:   20 MGD Project From Regional Water Fund 466-461-065 -$ 
 

-$ 
 

149,988 $ 
  149,988$ 

 935:   20 MGD Project From CIP Regional 20 MGD 466-461-066 -$ 
 

42,000$ 
 

-$ 
 

42,000$ 
 935:   20 MGD Project Interest 2004 Raw Water Loan 466-444-040 -$ 

 
-$ 
 

2,164 $ 
  2,164$ 

 935: Total 1,122,814$ 
 

1,164,814$ 
 

52,750 $ 
 

1,217,564$ 
 

937:   IBT Project From Regional Water Fund 466-461-064 119,988$ 
 

269,988$ 
 

150,000 $ 
  419,988$ 

 937:   IBT Project From Regional Water Fund 466-461-065 -$ 
 

525,000$ 
 

(150,000) $ 
  375,000$ 

 937:   IBT Project Investments 937-444-010 -$ 
 

-$ 
 

12 $ 
 

12$ 
 937:   IBT Project Transfer from Regional Water 937-461-064 -$ 

 
-$ 
 

-$ 
 

-$ 
 -$ 

 
-$ 
 

-$ 
  -$ 

 937: Total 119,988$ 
 

794,988$ 
 

12 $ 
 

795,000$ 
 

938:   Warren Meter From Regional Water 46-466-461-067 100,000.00$ 
 

100,000.00$ 
 

-$ 
  100,000.00$ 

 938:   Warren Meter Investments 46-938-444-010 -$ 
 

-$ 
 

100.00 $ 
 

100.00$ 
 938: Total 100,000.00$ 

 
100,000.00$ 
 

100.00 $ 
 

100,100.00$ 
 

TOTAL FUND REVENUE SUMMARY -$ 
 935:  20 MGD Project 1,122,814$ 

 
1,164,814$ 
 

52,750 $ 
 

1,217,564$
 937:  IBT Project 119,988$ 

 
794,988$ 
 

12 $ 
 

795,000$ 
 938:  Warren Meter 100,000$ 

 
100,000$ 
 

100 $ 
  100,100$ 

 Total Fund Revenues 1,342,802$ 
 

2,059,802$ 
 

52,862 $ 
 

2,112,664$ 
 

 Ordinance 12-29 
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 39 

CIP REGIONAL WATER FUND REVENUES: 46  

46: CIP Regional WaterFUNDS:

 



 11

Original Current
Department Line Item Code Budgget Budget Amendment Revised

935: 20 MGD Project, Created 10 April 2006 via Budget Ordinance, unnumbered and Ordinance 09-59
20 MGD Project Planning / Design 46-935-510-100 13,636$              13,636$               -$                  13,636$                 
20 MGD Project Legal / Administration 46-935-510-200 60,622$              62,622$               -$                  62,622$                 
20 MGD Project Engineering 46-935-510-301 1,048,556$         1,088,556$          1,088,556$            
20 MGD Project Contingency 46-935-590-990 -$                   -$                     52,750$            52,750$                 

-$                  -$                    -$                  -$                      
1,122,814$         1,164,814$          52,750$            1,217,564$            

937:  Interbasin Transfer, Created 10 April 2006 via unnumbered Ordinance (See Notes Below)
937:  IBT Project Planning / Design 46-937-510-100 119,988$            119,988$             -$                  119,988$               
937:  IBT Project Professional Services 46-937-500-400 -$                   41,224$               -$                  41,224$                 
937:  IBT Project Contingency 46-937-509-900 -$                   150,000$             12$                   150,012$               
937:  IBT Project Engineering 46-937-510-301 -$                   483,776$             -$                  483,776$               

-$                  -$                    -$                  -$                      
843: Total 119,988$            794,988$             12$                   795,000$               

938: Warren Meter Relocation, Created 14 June 2010 via Ordinance 10-34
938: Warren Construction 46-938-510-400 95,000$              95,000$               100$                 95,100$                 

Legal/Administration 46-938-510-200 5,000$                5,000$                 -$                  5,000$                   
-$                  -$                    -$                  -$                      

100,000$            100,000$             100$                 100,100$               

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
20 MGD Project 1,122,814$         1,164,814$          52,750$            1,217,564$            

937:  IBT Project 119,988$            794,988$             12$                   795,000$               
938: Warren 100,000$           100,000$            100$                 100,100$               

Total Fund Expenditures 1,342,802$        2,059,802$         52,862$           2,112,664$            

RECAP Fund 46 -$                       
Total Revenues 1,342,802$        2,059,802$         52,862$           2,112,664$            

Total Expenditures 1,342,802$        2,059,802$         52,862$           2,112,664$            
Variance -$                   -$                     -$                  -$                       

937 IBT:  See 1) Ordinance 10 April 2006, Minute Book 39 p. 756 and 
subsequent Ordinances:  2) unumbered ordinance dated 27 June 2007; 
3) unumbered ordinance dated 23 June 2008; 4) Ordinance 09-55 dated 
13 June 2009; 5) Ordinance 09-57 dated 13 July 2009; 6) Ordinance 10-
34 dated 14 June 2010; 7) Ordinance 11-17 dated 28 Feb 2011 and 8) 
Ordinance 11-39 dated 13 June 2011

CIP REGIONAL WATER FUND EXPENDITURES: 46

This project was started on 10 April 2006 and has had a total of eight (8) budget ordinance 
allocations since that time.  There is a misalignment in the budgeted amounted vs. the amount 
authorized by the budget ordinance by $12.  This has been corrected via this Ordinance. 
Additionally, the allocation error in coding in the several transfer lines from Regional water has 
been corrected for this project.

938 Warren Meter Relocation:  This project was begun on 14 June 
2010 via Ordinance 10-34; minute book 41, 579-580.

There are no problems associated with this project and it is shown here to reflect its status and to 
amend the budget to provide for $100 in investment earnings.

Notes:
This project was apparently re-started on 10 April 2006.  Only two appropriations have been 
made to it during this period of time as noted to the left.  Income exceeded the original estimate 
and has never been amended into the project.  This amendment has the effect of incorporating 
those funds and allocating same to project contingency.  Additionally, the transfer exceeded 
available dollars and it appears the former finance director became confused with the several line 
items transferring funds from Regional to 46 CIP.  This amendment corrects that $150,000 error.  
Additionally, thre is $2,163.26 in unbudgeted revenues for 46-466-444-010 Interest (4002 Raw 
Water Loan) that has been sitting idle for apparently sometime.  This amendment allocates said 
money to the 935 20 MGD project as a revenue source for said project and for additional funding 
for project contingency.

Reference:
935: 20 MGD:  See Ordinance approved 10 April 2006, Minute Book 39, 
p585 and Ordinance 09-58, Minute Book 254, pp 655-656.

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-29 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 9th day of April 2012.  YES:. NO:.   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. *** 
 
 



 12

__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-29 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 9 April 2012 (Minute Book 42, p.***). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
         

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12-29 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment #39 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-54; Ordinance 12-29) 

 
The purposes of this comprehensive budget amendment are two-fold.  First, the amendment 
provides for reconciliation of ongoing projects and to allocated unbudgeted revenue in the fund 
to the 20 MGD contingency.  This budget ordinance is essentially a housekeeping effort to get 
the project budgets in alignment as part of the pre-FY13 Budget process.   
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 

Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: _______________________________  Date: _______________________ 
  Judith Woods, Accounting Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 

 



  

                   

                Last Updated: 4/5/2012 4:03 PM 

Date Time Event Location 

Apr 10th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

Apr 19th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Apr 23rd  6:00  PM City Council Meeting & Work Session City Council Chambers 

May 1st 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment City Council Chambers 

May 2nd 8:00 AM Clean up Henderson City Operations Center 

May 7th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

May 8th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

May 14th  5:00 PM Library Board of Trustees H. Leslie Perry Memorial Library 

May 14th 6:00 PM Regular City Council Meeting City Council Chambers 

May 17th  7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

May 17th 6:00 PM  City Council Budget Work Session #1 
City Council Chambers

May 21st 6:00 PM  City Council Budget Work Session #2 
City Council Chambers

May 22nd  6:00 PM City Council Budget Work Session #3 
City Council Chambers

May 24th 6:00 PM City Council Budget Work Session #4 
City Council Chambers

May 25th 10:00 AM Henderson-Vance 911 Advisory Board 
Emergency Operations 

Center 

May 28th 
 

City Hall Closed 
Memorial Day Happy Memorial Day

May 29th 6:00 PM City Council Budget Work Session #5 City Council Chambers 

May 31st 6:00 PM City Council Budget Work Session #6 City Council Chambers 

June 4th 6:00 PM 
City Council Budget Work Session #7 

(If Needed) 
City Council Chambers 

June 4th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

June 5th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment City Council Chambers 

June 6th  8:00 AM Clean up Henderson City Operations Center 

June 11th 9:30 AM KLRWS Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Conference Room  

June 11th 6:00 PM Regular City Council Meeting City Council Chambers 

Meetings and Events Calendar 

































 

 

 

 

PROCLAMATION  12‐09 

 
 

A PROCLAMATION of the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Henderson, North Carolina, honoring 
David Chapel Missionary Baptist Church 

 
 

WHEREAS, Davis Chapel Baptist Church is located in Henderson, North Carolina: and;  

WHEREAS, Davis Chapel is led by Reverend Charles Turrentine, Sr.; and  

WHEREAS, members seek to serve the residents of Henderson; and 

WHEREAS, their current outreach programs include nursing and rest home ministries, food 

pantry and clothing closet; and 

WHEREAS, Davis Chapel participated in cleaning up Blacknall Cemetery and is active with 

Vance County Relay for Life and Crime Stopper’s Neighborhood Watch; and 

WHEREAS, Davis Chapel Missionary Baptist Church became incorporated in 2001 and built a 

new sanctuary in 2003. 

NOW THEREFORE, I, JAMES D. O’GEARY, Mayor of the City of Henderson, North Carolina, 

do hereby extend this token of appreciation to the Pastor, Officers, and Parishioners of 

Davis Chapel Baptist Church for your commitment to the City of Henderson and its citizens. 

 

 

________________________________ 
                  James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
  
Attest:   
 
____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 


	#11 RM 9 Apr 2012
	#10 26 Mar 12 Short meeting
	#11 26 Mar 12 work session
	CAF 12-48 Adopting Vance County's Language Access Plan R 12-26
	CAF 12-47 Adopting Vance County's Fair Housing Plan R 12-25
	CAF 12-45 BJA 2012 JAG Grant Application
	CAF 12-43 Adopting Asset Managment Plan R 12-31
	CAF 12-54  ordinance 12-27  BA # 37 Powell Bill & 12-28 BA# 38  CIP & Water Fund  ORD 12-28 ORD 12-29
	REFERENCE Meetings and Event
	#3 March 2012 Report
	March 12 HFD Report
	12-09 Davis Chapel

